

# Journal of the House

## ELEVENTH DAY

---

HALL OF THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,  
TOPEKA, KS, Tuesday, January 27, 2015, 11:00 a.m.

The House met pursuant to adjournment with Speaker pro tem Mast in the chair.

The roll was called with 118 members present.

Rep. Edmonds was excused on verified illness.

Reps. Dove, Goico, Kelley, Moxley, Sawyer and Winn were excused on excused absence by the Speaker.

Prayer by Chaplain Brubaker:

Most gracious and loving God,  
thank You once again for the opportunity  
to live and enjoy a beautiful day which you have created.  
As our leaders continue their work in creating,  
discussing, debating, vetoing or passing bills,  
grant them wisdom and discernment.  
It has been said that  
“If you don’t like something, change it.  
If you can’t change it,  
change your attitude.  
Don’t complain.”  
Remind our leaders of these words of wisdom  
as they collaborate together.  
In Your power, wisdom and strength I ask this,  
Amen.  
(quote from Maya Angelou)

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Rep. Becker.

### INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS

There being no objection, the following remarks of Rep. Lunn are spread upon the Journal:

Today I am privileged to honor the memory of 2<sup>nd</sup> Lt. Justin Lee Sisson. Justin was born in Minnesota, but moved back to Kansas shortly after he was born. Before leaving

home for college at Florida State, Justin lived in Kansas for 13 of his first 18 years, including the last 7 years in Overland Park, where he graduated from Blue Valley West High School in 2007. We have received an enormous amount of emails from Justin's teachers, friends, and people who were inspired by his story. Although every person seemed to have something unique to say about Justin, they all had a similar element in common. Justin was a leader who demonstrated humility and genuine concern for those he interacted with. Justin took leave from Florida State University to deploy to Iraq with the National Guard; Sisson earned a Bronze Star Medal for his honorable service.

Nearly a year after Sisson's graduation from Florida State, he deployed to Afghanistan in support of Operation Enduring Freedom. On June 3, while on foot with his platoon, after a meeting with local officials, a teacher from a nearby children's school detonated explosives while on his motorbike, it was a suicide bombing. 2 Lieutenant Sisson, Specialist (SPC) Robert Allen Peirce, an Afghan policeman, and ten school children were killed. Nine other members of the platoon were injured, some still recovering from their wounds today. He could have been laid to rest anywhere, including Arlington cemetery, but he humbly chose to be buried in Leavenworth, KS beside two of his veteran grandfathers.

He clearly made an impact on everyone he met. Justin's character can best be summed up by the remarks from one of his fellow soldiers:

"When you think of the value a life it is impossible to grasp or comprehend. Nonetheless, it is worth pondering. According to the law, all men are created equal, but are all men, in fact, equal?"

We are created equally, but we do not live equally. I have never been one to shower others with compliments because, quite frankly, most do not deserve praise. Most people I have met fall into the category of ordinary and accept mediocrity as a way of life. There are, however, those who shine like a burning example of what excellence looks like. They are the living proof that all men are not, and never will be, equal. Such a man touched my life in an indescribable way. He was a man of discipline, honor, and fortitude. I met him years ago in a place where I knew no one and from the beginning we looked out for each other. We are forged together through struggle and hardship.

He was a man that you could cast all your worries upon and then he would brush you off, look you in the eye, and compel you to continue on, and much to your surprise, with a lighter heart and quicker step. He was, by all account, extraordinary. His own drive and dedication stoked a fire within me. I feel honored to have served alongside a man who I can affectionately call my brother; a brothe4r who has given everything for me and for you. If he were here today, I know without a shadow of a doubt, he would do it all again. That's the kind of man he was. He would lay his life down for you and you alone. He was one of the bravest I have ever met and he brought great honor to his Country and this Army and to those who knew him, not because he died, but because of the way he lived.

The magnitude of his presence is something I cannot describe to you. If you did not know him then you will not understand. For those who knew him, these words do not begin to describe what I mean and what you undoubtedly felt. He was one of those few who have a tangible pull. Just as the earth pulls our feet to the ground, by sheer force of will and outstanding nature of his character, he pulled men together. As is clearly seen by the wake of his accomplishments, he was among the best that this nation had to offer. We are all at a loss. I, myself, am pained with sorrow.

My only request is that we honor our brother with our lives. To meet life head on with a fervor and a moral fiber that cannot be shaken and to live as he lived. With humility, grace, passion, professionalism, and charisma. I pray that I can follow the example that he set, for the path that he set was not easy. Second Lieutenant Justin Lee Sisson, you will never be forgotten.”

I am honored to present this certificate of recognition to a fallen American Patriot, 2<sup>nd</sup> Lt. Justin Sisson, on behalf of the Kansas State Legislature.

Rep. Lunn also introduced family members and friends of 2<sup>nd</sup> Lt. Sisson to the members of the House.

### **INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS**

The following bills and resolution were introduced and read by title:

**HB 2127**, AN ACT concerning sales taxation; relating to exemptions; friends of hospice of Jefferson county; amending K.S.A. 2014 Supp. 79-3606 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Taxation.

**HB 2128**, AN ACT concerning taxation; relating to permitted use of tax information; tax liens upon personal property; warrants; time for returns and payment of tax; liability for persons responsible for collection of sales or compensating tax; amending K.S.A. 2014 Supp. 75-5133, 79-3234, 79-3235, 79-3235a, 79-3607, 79-3617, 79-3643 and 79-41a03 and repealing the existing sections; also repealing K.S.A. 2014 Supp. 79-3235b, by Committee on Taxation.

**HB 2129**, AN ACT concerning crimes, punishment and criminal procedure; relating to abolition of the death penalty; creating the crime of aggravated murder; sentences of imprisonment for life without the possibility of parole; amending K.S.A. 2014 Supp. 21-5419, 21-6614, 21-6618, 21-6620, 21-6622, 21-6628, 21-6629, 21-6806, 22-3717, 22-4902, 22-4906, 38-2255, 38-2271, 38-2312, 38-2365, 39-970, 65-5117, 72-1397 and 75-52,148 and repealing the existing sections; also repealing K.S.A. 2014 Supp. 21-5401, 21-6614e, 21-6617 and 21-6619, by Committee on Judiciary.

**HB 2130**, AN ACT concerning the code of civil procedure; relating to wrongful death actions; amount of damages; amending K.S.A. 60-1903 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Judiciary.

**HB 2131**, AN ACT concerning oil and gas; relating to the abandoned oil and gas well fund, extension of transfers; amending K.S.A. 2014 Supp. 55-193 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Energy and Environment.

**HB 2132**, AN ACT concerning oil and gas; relating to natural gas injection wells, ownership, rule of capture; amending K.S.A. 55-1210 and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Energy and Environment.

**HB 2133**, AN ACT making and concerning appropriations for fiscal years ending June 30, 2015, and June 30, 2016, for state agencies; authorizing certain transfers, capital improvement projects and fees, imposing certain restrictions and limitations, and directing or authorizing certain receipts, disbursements, procedures and acts incidental to the foregoing; amending K.S.A. 2014 Supp. 72-8814, 74-4914d, 74-4920 and 74-50,107 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Appropriations.

**HB 2134**, AN ACT concerning consumer credit; relating to security freezes on protected consumer reports; amending K.S.A. 2014 Supp. 50-702 and repealing the

existing section, by Committee on Appropriations.

**HB 2135**, AN ACT concerning certain claims against the state, making appropriations, authorizing certain transfers, imposing certain restrictions and limitations, and directing or authorizing certain disbursements, procedures and acts incidental to the foregoing, by Committee on Joint Committee on Special Claims Against the State.

**HB 2136**, AN ACT concerning taxation; providing homestead property tax refunds for renters; amending K.S.A. 2014 Supp. 79-4501, 79-4502, 79-4508, 79-4509, 79-4511 and 79-4522 and repealing the existing sections, by Representative Dannebohm.

**HB 2137**, AN ACT enacting the police and citizen protection act; relating to use of body cameras by law enforcement officers, by Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice.

**HB 2138**, AN ACT concerning criminal procedure; relating to municipal courts; relating to appearance bonds; amending K.S.A. 12-4301 and 12-4303 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice.

**HB 2139**, AN ACT concerning postsecondary education; relating to residency for purposes of tuition and fees; amending K.S.A. 2014 Supp. 76-729 and repealing the existing section; also repealing K.S.A. 2014 Supp. 76-731a, by Representatives Rubin, Barker, Barton, Bradford, Hedke, Hildabrand, Hutchins, K. Jones, Kiegerl, Lunn, Macheers, L. Osterman, Peck, Read, Suellentrop and Sutton.

**HB 2140**, AN ACT concerning criminal procedure; relating to appeals; interlocutory appeals; transfer of appeals by the prosecution to the supreme court; amending K.S.A. 2014 Supp. 22-3602 and 22-3603 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice.

**HB 2141**, AN ACT concerning bail enforcement agents; relating to licensure by the attorney general; sureties and bail agents; amending K.S.A. 2014 Supp. 22-2809a and repealing the existing section, by Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice.

**HB 2142**, AN ACT concerning insurance; relating to certain definitions; amending K.S.A. 2014 Supp. 40-2,118 and 40-22a13 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Insurance.

HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION No. **HCR 5009**—

By Committee on Judiciary

**HCR 5009**-- A PROPOSITION to amend section 5 of article 3 of the constitution of the state of Kansas; relating to justices of the supreme court and retention in office.

*Be it resolved by the Legislature of the State of Kansas, two-thirds of the members elected (or appointed) and qualified to the House of Representatives and two-thirds of the members elected (or appointed) and qualified to the Senate concurring therein:*

Section 1. The following proposition to amend the constitution of the state of Kansas shall be submitted to the qualified electors of the state for their approval or rejection: Section 5 of article 3 of the constitution of the state of Kansas is hereby amended to read as follows:

"§ 5. **Selection of justices of the supreme court.** (a) Any vacancy occurring in the office of any justice of the supreme court and any position to be open thereon as a result of enlargement of the court, or the retirement or failure of an incumbent to file ~~his~~ *such justice's* declaration of candidacy to ~~succeed himself~~ *be retained in*

office as hereinafter required, or failure of a justice to be elected to ~~succeed himself~~ *be retained in office*, shall be filled by appointment by the governor of one of three persons possessing the qualifications of office who shall be nominated and whose names shall be submitted to the governor by the supreme court nominating commission established as hereinafter provided.

(b) In event of the failure of the governor to make the appointment within sixty days from the time the names of the nominees are submitted to ~~him~~ *the governor*, the chief justice of the supreme court shall make the appointment from such nominees.

(c) Each justice of the supreme court appointed pursuant to provisions of subsection (a) ~~of this section~~ shall hold office for an initial term ending on the second Monday in January following the first general election that occurs after the expiration of twelve months in office. Not less than sixty days prior to the holding of the general election next preceding the expiration of ~~his~~ *such justice's* term of office, ~~any~~ *the* justice of the supreme court may file in the office of the secretary of state a declaration of candidacy for ~~election to succeed himself~~ *retention in office*. If a declaration is not so filed, the position held by such justice shall be open from the expiration of ~~his~~ *such justice's* term of office. If such declaration is filed, ~~his~~ *such justice's* name shall be submitted at the next general election to the electors of the state on a separate judicial ballot, without party designation, reading substantially as follows:

"Shall

---

(Here insert name of justice.)

---

(Here insert the title of the court.)  
be retained in office?"

If ~~a majority~~ *33%* of those voting on the question vote against retaining ~~him~~ *the justice* in office, the position or office which ~~he~~ *the justice* holds shall be open upon the expiration of ~~his~~ *such justice's* term of office; ~~Otherwise~~ *he* *the justice* shall, unless removed for cause, remain in office for the regular term of six years from the second Monday in January following such election. At the expiration of each term ~~he~~ *the justice* shall, unless by law ~~he~~ *the justice* is compelled to retire, be eligible for retention in office by election in the manner prescribed in this section.

(d) A nonpartisan nominating commission whose duty it shall be to nominate and submit to the governor the names of persons for appointment to fill vacancies in the office of any justice of the supreme court is hereby established, and shall be known as the "supreme court nominating commission." ~~Said~~ *Such* commission shall be organized as hereinafter provided.

(e) The supreme court nominating commission shall be composed as follows: One member, who shall be ~~chairman~~ *chairperson*, chosen from among their number by the members of the bar who are residents of and licensed in Kansas; one member from each congressional district chosen from among their number by the resident members of the bar in each such district; and one member, who is not a lawyer, from each congressional district, appointed by the governor from among the residents of each such district.

(f) The terms of office, the procedure for selection and certification of the

members of the commission and provision for their compensation or expenses shall be as provided by the legislature.

(g) No member of the supreme court nominating commission shall, while ~~he is~~ a member, hold any other public office by appointment or any official position in a political party or for six months thereafter be eligible for nomination for the office of justice of the supreme court. The commission may act only by the concurrence of a majority of its members."

Sec. 2. The following statement shall be printed on the ballot with the amendment as a whole:

*"Explanatory statement.* The purpose of this amendment is to change the vote required to not retain a supreme court justice from a majority of those voting on the question to 33% of those voting on the question.

"A vote for this proposition would change the vote required to not retain a supreme court justice from a majority of those voting on the question to 33% of those voting on the question. If 33% of those voting on the question vote against retaining the justice in office, the position which the justice holds shall be vacant upon the expiration of the justice's term of office.

"A vote against this proposition would continue the current law on the vote required to not retain a supreme court justice. If a majority of those voting on the question vote against retaining the justice in office, the position which the justice holds shall be vacant upon the expiration of the justice's term of office."

Sec. 3. This resolution, if approved by two-thirds of the members elected (or appointed) and qualified to the House of Representatives, and two-thirds of the members elected (or appointed) and qualified to the Senate shall be entered on the journals, together with the yeas and nays. The secretary of state shall cause this resolution to be published as provided by law and shall cause the proposed amendment to be submitted to the electors of the state at the general election in November in the year 2016 unless a special election is called at a sooner date by concurrent resolution of the legislature, in which case it shall be submitted to the electors of the state at the special election.

## REFERENCE OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were referred to committees as indicated:

Federal and State Affairs: **HB 2125**.

Insurance: **HB 2126**.

Judiciary: **HB 2124**.

## COMMUNICATIONS FROM STATE OFFICERS

From Dennis L. Mesa, Executive Director, Kansas Housing Resources Corporation, KHRC Annual Report for 2014.

The complete report is kept on file and open for inspection in the office of the Chief Clerk.

On motion of Rep. Vickrey, the House resolved into the Committee of the Whole, with Rep. Kleeb in the chair.

**COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE**

On motion of Rep. Kleeb, Committee of the Whole report, as follows, was adopted:

Recommended that roll call was demanded on motion of Rep. Rubin to amend **HR 6004** on page 16, in line 5, by striking "(e)" and inserting "(g)";

On page 23, following line 9, by inserting:

"(b) A roll call vote shall be taken in the Committee of the Whole on any motion to report a bill, a bill as amended, a resolution or a concurrent resolution, or a resolution or a concurrent resolution as amended, favorably for passage.

(c) A roll call vote shall be taken in the Committee of the Whole on any motion to amend a bill, a resolution or a concurrent resolution.";

And by redesignating subsections accordingly;

Also on page 23, in line 19, by striking "(e)" and inserting "(g)";

On page 26, in line 9, by striking "(e)" and inserting "(b), (c) or (g)";

On page 29, in line 17, by striking "subsection (c) of";

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 51; Nays 67; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 7.

Yeas: Anthimides, Becker, Bollier, Bradford, Bridges, Bruchman, Couture-Lovelady, Campbell, Carmichael, B. Carpenter, Clark, Clayton, DeGraaf, Dierks, Doll, Esau, Ewy, Finch, Finney, Gallagher, Garber, Grosserode, Hedke, Hibbard, Highberger, Hildabrand, Hill, Hineman, Houser, Houston, Jennings, K. Jones, Kiegerl, Lusk, Macheers, O'Brien, L. Osterman, Ousley, Peck, Read, Rhoades, Rooker, Rubin, Scapa, Sloan, Sutton, Swanson, Trimmer, Ward, Whipple, Whitmer.

Nays: Alcala, Alford, Ballard, Barker, Barton, Billinger, Boldra, Brunk, Burroughs, Carlin, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Concannon, Corbet, Curtis, Dannebohm, Davis, Estes, Francis, Frownfelter, Gonzalez, Hawkins, Hemsley, Henderson, Henry, Highland, Hoffman, Huebert, Hutchins, Hutton, Johnson, D. Jones, Kahrs, Kelly, Kleeb, Kuether, Lane, Lunn, Lusker, Mason, Mast, McPherson, Merrick, Patton, Pauls, Phillips, Powell, Proehl, Ruiz, Ryckman, Ryckman Sr., Schroeder, Schwab, Schwartz, Seiwert, Smith, Suellentrop, Thimesch, Thompson, Tietze, Todd, Vickrey, Victors, Waymaster, Williams, Wilson, Wolfe Moore.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Dove, Edmonds, Goico, Kelley, Moxley, Sawyer, Winn.

The motion of Rep. Rubin did not prevail.

Also, roll call was demanded on further motion of Rep. Rubin to amend **HR 6004** on page 1, in line 13, after "a.m." by inserting "**No hour of meeting on any day of the session shall be set prior to 8:00 a.m., and no meeting on any day of the session may continue after 12 midnight. No meeting may take place between the hours of 12 midnight and 8:00 a.m. on any day of the session.**";

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 69; Nays 49; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 7.

Yeas: Alford, Anthimides, Ballard, Becker, Bollier, Bradford, Bridges, Bruchman, Burroughs, Campbell, Carlin, Carmichael, Clayton, Curtis, DeGraaf, Dierks, Doll, Ewy, Finch, Finney, Francis, Frownfelter, Gallagher, Garber, Grosserode, Henderson, Henry, Hibbard, Highberger, Hill, Hineman, Houser, Houston, Huebert, Jennings, Johnson, K. Jones, Kelly, Kiegerl, Kuether, Lusk, Lusker, Mason, O'Brien, L. Osterman, Ousley, Patton, Pauls, Peck, Phillips, Proehl, Read, Rhoades, Rooker, Rubin, Ruiz, Ryckman

Sr., Sloan, Smith, Sutton, Swanson, Thompson, Tietze, Trimmer, Victors, Ward, Whipple, Wilson, Wolfe Moore.

Nays: Alcalá, Barker, Barton, Billinger, Boldra, Brunk, Couture-Lovelady, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Concannon, Corbet, Dannebohm, Davis, Esau, Estes, Gonzalez, Hawkins, Hedke, Hemsley, Highland, Hildabrand, Hoffman, Hutchins, Hutton, D. Jones, Kahrs, Kleebe, Lane, Lunn, Macheers, Mast, McPherson, Merrick, Powell, Ryckman, Scapa, Schroeder, Schwab, Schwartz, Seiwert, Suellentrop, Thimesch, Todd, Vickrey, Waymaster, Whitmer, Williams.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Dove, Edmonds, Goico, Kelley, Moxley, Sawyer, Winn.

The motion of Rep. Rubin prevailed.

Also, roll call was demanded on motion of Rep. Hineman to amend **HR 6004** on page 30, in line 33, by striking "**Appropriation**" and inserting "**Requirements Prior to Consideration of Appropriation and other**"; also in line 33, after "Bills." by inserting "(a)";

Also on page 30, in line 36, by striking "24" and inserting "48"; also in line 36, after "House." by inserting "The supplemental note to each appropriation bill shall be printed and distributed, or shall be made available to members electronically online, and all members shall be notified by e-mail, at least 48 hours before such bill is considered by the House.

(b) All bills other than appropriation bills shall be printed and distributed, or shall be made available to members electronically online, and all members shall be notified by email, at least 24 hours before such bills are considered by the House. The supplemental note and fiscal note to such bills shall be printed and distributed or shall be made available to members electronically online, and all members shall be notified by e-mail, at least 24 hours before such bills are considered by the House.";

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 52; Nays 66; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 7.

Yeas: Alcalá, Ballard, Becker, Bollier, Bradford, Bridges, Bruchman, Burroughs, Campbell, Carmichael, Clayton, Curtis, DeGraaf, Dierks, Doll, Ewy, Finch, Finney, Francis, Frownfelter, Gallagher, Garber, Henderson, Henry, Hibbard, Highberger, Hill, Hineman, Houston, Jennings, Kiegerl, Kuether, Lane, Lusk, Lusker, Ousley, Peck, Phillips, Rhoades, Rooker, Rubin, Ruiz, Scapa, Sloan, Smith, Swanson, Tietze, Trimmer, Victors, Ward, Wilson, Wolfe Moore.

Nays: Alford, Anthimides, Barker, Barton, Billinger, Boldra, Brunk, Couture-Lovelady, Carlin, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Concannon, Corbet, Dannebohm, Davis, Esau, Estes, Gonzalez, Grosserode, Hawkins, Hedke, Hemsley, Highland, Hildabrand, Hoffman, Houser, Huebert, Hutchins, Hutton, Johnson, D. Jones, K. Jones, Kahrs, Kelly, Kleebe, Lunn, Macheers, Mason, Mast, McPherson, Merrick, O'Brien, L. Osterman, Patton, Pauls, Powell, Proehl, Read, Ryckman, Ryckman Sr., Schroeder, Schwab, Schwartz, Seiwert, Suellentrop, Sutton, Thimesch, Thompson, Todd, Vickrey, Waymaster, Whipple, Whitmer, Williams.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Dove, Edmonds, Goico, Kelley, Moxley, Sawyer, Winn.

The motion of Rep. Hineman did not prevail; and **HR 6004** be adopted as amended.

Roll call was demanded on motion of Rep. Rubin to amend **HCR 5002** on page 4, in line 28, by striking "subject"; in line 37, after the period, by inserting "Only one



additional bill or concurrent resolution or part of a bill or concurrent resolution in conference or in a bill or concurrent resolution which has passed in either one or both houses during the current biennium of the legislature may be included in the report of the conference committee on any bill or concurrent resolution.";

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 82; Nays 35; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 8.

Yeas: Alcalá, Alford, Anthimides, Ballard, Barton, Becker, Billinger, Boldra, Bollier, Bradford, Bridges, Bruchman, Burroughs, Couture-Lovelady, Campbell, Carlin, Carmichael, Clark, Clayton, Concannon, Curtis, DeGraaf, Dierks, Doll, Esau, Estes, Ewy, Finch, Finney, Francis, Frownfelter, Gallagher, Garber, Grosserode, Henderson, Henry, Hibbard, Highberger, Hildabrand, Hill, Hineman, Houser, Houston, Huebert, Hutchins, Jennings, Johnson, K. Jones, Kelly, Kiegerl, Kuether, Lane, Lusk, Lusker, McPherson, O'Brien, L. Osterman, Ousley, Patton, Peck, Phillips, Proehl, Read, Rhoades, Rooker, Rubin, Ruiz, Scapa, Schwartz, Sloan, Smith, Sutton, Swanson, Thompson, Tietze, Trimmer, Victors, Ward, Waymaster, Whipple, Wilson, Wolfe Moore.

Nays: Barker, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Corbet, Dannebohm, Davis, Gonzalez, Hawkins, Hedke, Hemsley, Highland, Hoffman, Hutton, D. Jones, Kahrs, Kleeb, Lunn, Macheers, Mason, Mast, Merrick, Pauls, Powell, Ryckman, Ryckman Sr., Schroeder, Schwab, Seiwert, Suellentrop, Thimesch, Todd, Vickrey, Whitmer, Williams.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Brunk, Dove, Edmonds, Goico, Kelley, Moxley, Sawyer, Winn. The motion of Rep. Rubin prevailed.

Also, on motion of Rep. Schwab to amend **HCR 5002**, the motion did not prevail.

Also, roll call was demanded on motion of Rep. Schroeder to amend **HCR 5002** on page 8, by striking all in lines 41 through 43;

On page 9, by striking all in lines 1 through 6;

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 39; Nays 77; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 9.

Yeas: Alcalá, Ballard, Bollier, Bridges, Burroughs, Campbell, Carlin, Carmichael, Clayton, Curtis, Dierks, Doll, Finney, Frownfelter, Gallagher, Henderson, Henry, Hibbard, Highberger, Hill, Hineman, Houston, Kiegerl, Kuether, Lane, Lusk, Lusker, Ousley, Rooker, Ruiz, Schroeder, Sloan, Swanson, Tietze, Trimmer, Victors, Ward, Wilson, Wolfe Moore.

Nays: Alford, Anthimides, Barker, Barton, Billinger, Boldra, Bradford, Bruchman, Brunk, Couture-Lovelady, B. Carpenter, W. Carpenter, Claeys, Clark, Concannon, Corbet, Davis, DeGraaf, Esau, Estes, Ewy, Finch, Francis, Garber, Gonzalez, Grosserode, Hawkins, Hedke, Hemsley, Highland, Hildabrand, Hoffman, Houser, Huebert, Hutchins, Hutton, Jennings, Johnson, D. Jones, K. Jones, Kahrs, Kelly, Kleeb, Lunn, Macheers, Mason, Mast, McPherson, Merrick, O'Brien, L. Osterman, Patton, Pauls, Peck, Phillips, Powell, Proehl, Read, Rhoades, Rubin, Ryckman, Ryckman Sr., Scapa, Schwab, Schwartz, Seiwert, Smith, Suellentrop, Sutton, Thimesch, Thompson, Todd, Vickrey, Waymaster, Whipple, Whitmer, Williams.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Becker, Dannebohm, Dove, Edmonds, Goico, Kelley, Moxley, Sawyer, Winn.

The motion of Rep. Schroeder did not prevail; and **HCR 5002** be adopted as

amended.

### REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

Committee on **Appropriations** recommends **HB 2005** be passed.

Committee on **Appropriations** recommends **HB 2010** be amended on page 1, in line 10, by striking "an" and inserting "any state agency or any"; in line 12, by striking "an" and inserting "any state agency or any"; in line 17, by striking "an" and inserting "any state agency or any"; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee on **Judiciary** recommends **HB 2023** be passed and, because the committee is of the opinion that the bill is of a noncontroversial nature, be placed on the consent calendar.

Upon unanimous consent, the House referred back to the regular business, Introduction of Bills and Concurrent Resolutions.

### INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were introduced and read by title:

**HB 2143**, AN ACT concerning state governmental ethics; relating to lobbying restrictions; amending K.S.A. 46-232 and repealing the existing section, by Representative Ward.

**HB 2144**, AN ACT concerning voter registration; amending K.S.A. 2014 Supp. 25-2309 and repealing the existing section, by Representative Ward.

**HB 2145**, AN ACT concerning elections; enacting the help Kansas vote act; amending the crime of perjury; amending K.S.A. 2014 Supp. 21-5903 and 25-2309 and repealing the existing sections, by Representative Ward.

**HB 2146**, AN ACT concerning county election officers; amending K.S.A. 46-246a and repealing the existing section, by Representative Ward.

On motion of Rep. Vickrey, the House adjourned until 11:00 a.m., Wednesday, January 28, 2015.

CHARLENE SWANSON, *Journal Clerk.*

SUSAN W. KANNARR, *Chief Clerk.*

